
UNITED NATIONS

ECONOMIC
AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

? if,!........ '.

5------7"--
............., --'- --. .r---

31~-=----
Distr.
GENERAL

B/ON.6/SR.218
19 June J.956

ENGL!SH - ~GLISH and
Originels :ewmœ

COMMISSION ON THE STATUS OF WOMEN

Tenth Session

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND EIGJI11EENTH MEETING

held et the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 21 March 1956, at 10.30 a.m.

CONTENTS:

1. Tr1bute to the memory of the lats
Mrs. Irene Joliot-Curie

2. Equal pay for equal work (item 5 ~ the agenda)
(E/CN.6/285 and Corr.l, E/CN.6/276 and Corr.l)
(resumed fram the previous meeting)

!tagea

~t·
",.-

5

5



EjCN.6/SR.21B
page 2

Present:

Chairman: l''Irs. ROSSEL (Sweden)

Hambers:

Mrs. CORREA MORALES de !J'ARICIO

Miss GIBSON

Mrs. CISELET

Mrs. NOVIKOVA

Mrs. CHU

1'1i ss MANAS

Niss BERNARDlliO

Mrs. LEFAUCHEUX

Miss ROESAD

Mrs. BEN-ZVI

Begum ANWAR .AHMED

Mrs. DEHBINSKA

lir. GIRON

Mrs. SPIRlDONOVA

Dame Lucile SAYERS

Mrs. HAHN

Mrs. BENlTEZ de SOCORRO
~

Mrs. MITROVIC

Argentina

Australia

Belgium.

Byeloruss1an Soviet
Socialiet Repub110

China

Cuba

Dominioan Repub11c

France

Indonesia

Israel

Pakistan

Poland

Sweden

Uni on of Soviet
Socialist Repub110s

United Kingdom of Great
Britain and Northern Ireland

United States of Amerioa

Venezuela

Yugoslavia

Observers for Governments of States T1embers of the United Nations:

Mr. S.ARANA GUERREIRO

Mr. DASlJü.,OV

Mr. STRNAD

111S8 CaRGOS

Miss LUNSINGH-MEI:rl!;R

Brazil

Bulgaria

Czechoslova.kia

Italy

Netherlands



Representatives 0f__~pecial_~ed agencies:

Internatio~al Labour Organisation

United Nations ~ducational~ Scientific
and Cultural Organ:,-zation

World Health Organization

E/CN .6/SR.218
:page 3

Nrs. FIWi;IWA

Hi as SJ-J.J-l.S

Miss HOt-JELL

Hepresep!at~ve of an inte~-gover~lental organization:

Inter~ùnericanComnùssion of Women Niss IDTZ

Representa~iv~~-9.!__~q~9~~nmental organizations:

Categorx· A

International Confederation of Free l'f.rs. EKENDAHL·
'l'rade Uni ons

International Federation of Christian
Trade Unions

World }!'ederation of Trade Un:!.ons

World FcderctioD of United Nations
Associations

~~gQl:;):.:Il
Catholic International Union for

Social Service

International illl~ance of Women

Internat:i.or~al Couneil of Women

Internrrti0nal :B"'Gùe:'·at:!.o~ l1iun.i.es de la
Jeune :WiIJ.e'i

International Fed8ration of Business
and Profecr~i. '):":'12. HŒ11P;'l.

Internat:.onal Feclera.tio:l of University
Women

International 1!'8d.eru.t~Lon of \J0men
Lawyero

Internat~onal League fo~ the R~ghts

of Han

Liaison Comr.littee of Women's
Interne.tione.l Or82ni.7.ctt,lons

Women's lnt8rni1tio:lal L8~guC for
Peace and Fl',3e:~om

:Niss NAGEI.8
l'Irs. SCHMIDT

l'Ir. DRINKWATER
lirs. NOCE

lY".Il's. KRETSCHl:lER

Ni ss BOsr1J.N8
Niss EARTOGHE

l1iss CiÜ"IPüAl'10R
~œs. CHOISY-NECKER
Miss GINSBERG

Y.Il's. Cl.HTER

11rs) van WBRVElŒ

l'liss TOMLINSON

l'Irs. F'IECHI'ER
1Uss ROBB

Lady CHfl..'IT'ERJEE
Niss }"JANFREDINI

:~~:-s. WOUE-EGENOLF

lirs. de C.h.ZOTTE
Miss van EEGHEN

Mrs. BAER



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 4

Representatives of non-governmental organ1zatione

Category B (continued)

World Federation of Cathol1c Young Women
and Girls

Worldta Women'a Chr1stian Temperance Union

World Union of Cathol1c Woments
Organizations

World Young Women's Christian Association

Young Ohristian Workers

Register

Open Door International

St. Joan's International Social and
Political 1~11ance

World Federation of Democratie Youth

Secretariat:

Mrs. Tenison-Woods

fus. Grinberg-Vinaver

(cont1nued)

Miss F.ARQJJET
1'l1ss HERREN

Mrs. CHtJJC-CONSTANTIN

Mias de ROMER
Miss ARNOUID

Miss ARNOLD

Miss PEZZULLO

Mrs. BilER

1'I18S CHALLONER
Mrs. KINSEI..IA
l'1re. LEROY-BOY

Mrs. MOLKOVA

Representative of the
Secretary-General

Secretary to the Commiss1~!)



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 5

1. TRIBUTE TO TEE I1EMORY OF THE LATE !"Ira. IRENE JOLIOT-CURIE

Mrs. ITEMBINSKA (Poland) said that on the occasion of the State :t'uneraI

to be accorded that day to the late Mrs. Irène Joliot-Curie in Paris, ahe ~shed

to pay her respects to the memory of that eminent woman and outstand1ng sc1ent1st,

who, the daughter of 1'Iarie Curie-Sklodowska, had passed away before her time

as the priee of the scientific work to which she had devoted her life. It was

the bounden dutY of the Commission on the status of Women to paya well-merited

tribute to one who had been an ornament to science.

Mrs. W:AUCHE:UX (]l'rance) thanked Mrs. Dembinska for her condolences on

tho passing of Mrs. Irène Joliot-Curie. Mrs. Denbinska' s kind words would touch

the heart of Frenchwomen and other women throughout the world, who regarded

Mra. Joliot-Curie as a great exemple of devotion to dutY and huma.n worth.

2. EQ.UAL PAY FOR EQ.UAL WORK (item 5 of the agenda) (E/CN.6/285 and Corr.l,
~/CN.6/276 and Corr.l) (resumed from the previous meeting)

,The CHAIRHAN 1nvited the Commission to continue its consideration ot

1tem 5 of the agenda: equal pay for equal work.

Dame Lucile SAYERS (United Kingdom) congratulated the representat1ve of

the International Labour Organisation on her able introduction at the previous

meeting of the report on equal remuneration for men and women for work of,equal

value (E/CN.6/285 and Corr.l).

The United Kingdom had no\v introduèed cquulpay for men and women in

non-industrial sectors of goverruùent service. Wamen's pay scales were being

increased by annual instalments to bring them up to the level of those for men.

That exemple had been followed in certain other fields of public employment,

but the principlo was not generally recognlzed in prlvate employment, which.wsa

regulated by a system of collective bargainlng between employees and employers

in which 1t would not be appropriate for the Government to intervane. The

United Kingdom Government was therefore not in a position to ratlfy International

Labour Convention No. 100. Moreover, the wider implications of the ratification

of that Convention needed careful consideration, having regard to the system of

industrial relations obtaining in the United Kingdom.

Referring ta specifie points in the documents before the Commission she sald

that the statmnent in paragraph 77 of the Secretary-Generalts report (E/CN.6/276)



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 6

that ratifioation of the Convention would "not impose any legal obl1gationlf was

inacourate and misleading, for in sign1ng the instrument governmenta surely

aseumed an obligation to promote and ensure the application of the prineiple

of equal pay for equal work. vlith reference to paragraph 142, where it wes

stated that the London County Couneil had conceded the principle of equal pay in

the administrative and clerical grades in 1952, she said that in fact 1dentical

saales had applied for men and women in the administrative and technical grades

for many years! The clerical grades alone were affected by the innovation.

With reference to paragraph 144, slle pointed out that equal pay in the National

Health Service did not cover domestic and ancillary staff. In the nationalized

electric~l industries (paragraph l45), schemes of equal pay would reaah the1r

final-stage in January 1960.

The position of women in non-self-governing and trust territories had been

kept under careful observation, and the principle of equal pay borne in mind 1n

the light of local conditions andpossibilities.

l'irs. HITROVlé (Yugoslavia) said toot a· perusal of the report of the

International Labour Offioe on equal ramuneration for men and women for work of

oqual value and of the Secretary-General's report on methods used in campaigns

for equal pay for equal work, based on information received from non-governmental

organizatlons, showed that progress had bean made in toot direction sinee the

nlnth session. It appeared from those reports that International Labour

Convention No. 100 had reeently boen ratified by Bulgaria and that several

other countries were proposing to accede to it; and at the previous meeting

the Commission had learned that the Byelorussian and Soviet Union Governments

were also about to ratify it. It was also noteworthy that the International

Labour Organisation and its technical committees, in particular its Textiles

Cowdttee l were doing their utnost and suggesting ways of applying the provisions

of the Convention. Another important circurr,stance was that a number of States,

1ncludlng the United States of Ar.1erica, had introduced leglslation giving

praotical effect to the principle of oqual remuneration.

Neverthelesa, it was clear from the Secretary-General's report that,

even·today, a great~any countries, far from implementing the principle of

equal remuneration, were invoking every kind of pretext to avoid paying women



EICN.6/sR.21B
page 7

the sarne wages as men for 1dentical work. Yet the principle was of the utmost

importance if wamen were to enjoy an equal social status, and members of the

Commission had all along unanimously agreed that it was Just as important for

women as the principle of political rights.

The CoIllIllission could already be said to have consi,derable achievements to its

credit in the matter of equality of rights. It had, for instance, prepared the

Convention on Politieal Rights of Women, a draft of a convention on the nationa11ty

of married wmùen, and other texts. The problem of equal ramuneration, however,

also cnlled for oaretul consideration by the Commission which wes in dutY bound.

to ensure that International labour Convention No. 100 waa universally ratit'ied.

Obviously the application of the principle of equal remuneration entailed

measures of vast scope for any country. In Yugoslavia, the princ1ple was app11ed

very widely- an indication that all such problems could be aolved, even in

countr1es where industry was not yût highly developed c

In Yugoslavia the number of women in employment was constant1y on the

increaee. Women constituted 25 per cent of the entire wage-earning population.

The proportion of gaini"ully-employed wamen varied according to the sector: it

was 21 per cent in industry, but 50 per cent in administration, public health

services etc. In industry, however, the number of skilled women workers was

still rather low as compared with that of men, except in textiles, the main reason

being that industrial development had been concentrated mainly on heavy indust:ry 

the key industries - and on building, where the number of openlngs for women was

limited. The situation wes changing, however, and once the phase of

1ndustrialization ~ctS over, thore would be more jobs for wamen in skil1ed

occupations, bath in industry and in other sectora of the econamy. There waa no

doubt that as the younger gene~ation with eight years' compulsory Bchooling began

to take its place in economic life, that tendency wou1d become more murked, since

et the moment girls accounted for up to 60 per cent of the ~ixed classes.

Incidenta1ly, in many sectors of industry, the eight-year leaving certificate

wes required as a qualification for employment, und it had been made compulsor:!

for young male and ternale workers entering industry at 15 or 16 years of age ta

take a course in an industrial or trade sohool. Vocational training wou1d a160



page 8

be required in aIl branches of lndustry. Thus in Yugoslavia 1 once women had

acquired the Sffine technical qualifications as mon, there would be no further .

obstacles to the universal application of the principle of equal remuneration.

State intervention in that field was considerable, and took the farm not

only of legislation but of the creation of commissions to study specifie problems.

As a result, aIl warnen, both manual worke~s and salaried employees, whatavar their

occupation, enjayed the benefits of labour legislation - social security, free

health services, the right to retire at fi.fty (as compared with fifty-fiva for

men), pensions in full after thirty years of service, and ~~~ata according to
,

length of service, fourt.een days' paid holiday a year afte:::- eleven months'

service and so on. In that conneIion, she would point out that in evaluating

the standard of living of a country, i t has nocessary tc) allow for the many

benefits enjoyed by the worke~s. If in Yusoslnvia, for example, the standard

of living appeared to be lower than in the highly developed cOlUitries, it must

be remembered that the system of l.JOrksl's 1 security and the benefi ts they

received under the social securi~y syotem g~lve thom many advantages which were

parliicularly valuable because r.uara:lt·eed by th9 Sta~jec

Describing the varj.ous measure:::, e~;pe:_l:.éLlly lcgislative measures, introduced

ta protect mothers alld ta enSUI'e eCi.uali t.y of ?'igh~:·s forl.-Jorldng woraen, she

mentioned maternity leave of ninety days) Ghree vreelcs of vJllich had to be taken

before confinement; regulations governing the cmplo~Jont of pregnant womenj

special facili ties by '\\Ihich nursj. ng mothers we:::'8 alJ.owed to break off their work

if the child was in the imm,ecliate neighbou:::hood of the unclorteJdng; the rule

that women could not be clismissed v7hile pregnant; leave for the mother when the

child was sick, and so on and so forth. Such measures were part of the general

social security system, and any womqn with not less th~~ six months' uninterrupted

service in the same undorto.k::"ng could bel~afit from thom. 'l'hus, in a pro.ctical

fashion, the' measures relo.ting lia ~qyul l'81.1lUlbl:'U"tioll WOl'e supplemüntüd byethers

designed to protect women and working mothers. Clearly the strict application

of such protective measures sometimes l'an into difficulties j but the

managements of undertakings, labour inspnctorates, trade unions and women's

associations kept a constant, watch on in'l'ringelTlcnlis of the regulations, which in

any event were becoming fewer and fewer. The general experience was that

undertakings were sometimes reluctant to employ womon, and tended ta dismiss thon



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 9

more readily because the benefits to which they were entitled in the social and

public health fields were hard on the employer's budget o But, through social

security, the co~~unity boro the main burden of protecting women, especially

working mothers, thanks to insignificant contributions levied on all its members.

There was in particular one provision under which, in case of illness, women - who

had been found to be abse~'.t more often but for shorter periods than men - did not

receive.the tull allowance payable by the enterprise in lieu of salary, as.wes the

case with men, but only half the allowance, which was paid out of social security.

That was a kinJ of compensation to the undertaking for the loss caused by the

more frequent absence of WOm6::l. While i t \-18S true that the burden on the

community entailod by the measures for protecting working women and for ensuring

equality of rights "ra8 rather onerous, i t was equally true that in the long run

such a policy was 1888 costly for the State and gav8 better results. That was

why the Yugoslav delegation upheld that policy, and was at aIl times ready to

encourage any step and to suppo~t any constructive proposaI for the improvement

of the status of working wom0~ throughout the world Q

Mrs. CISELET (Belgi~un) said that Belgium was one of the ten countries

which had signed and ratified International Labour Convention No. 100 on equal

rCIillF:.n:.;.'o-:-:i.c.n for men and women for vlOrk of equal vaJ.u.e. She was able to state

that in her country remun9rat~.on "l.vas equal in all public posts - meaning in all

departments of the Government and in local Government, and especially in the huge

field of education, in which GO many women found employment o It was equal aven

in the higher public offices, such as thof:e c':::G~œ;;:':dHi th t he administration of

justice.

On the other band, sho could not say th~t the principle of equality of

remuneratiün was admitted in the private sector. Belgium was, of course, a

country of free enterprise i and ir.:~erference by the Government, or even by tha

'legislature, in the private sector of its economy'vas avoided as much as possible.

The Govermnent could not, therefore, give orders; but it could bring friend1y

pressure to bear on e.mploye=s and workers when w2ge~ were fixed through

collective agreements. IJG should be rememberod that International Labour

Convention No. 100 did not impose O~ signatory states stricter legal duties than

that, at least in respect of the priva·~e sector 0



EjCN.6jSR.218
page 10

Moreover, the Belg1an trade unions had advocated ~he princip1e of equal

remuneration. It was plainly being put slowly but surely into practice and the

ditferential between men's nnd wamen's weges wes dwindling. The generu1

introduction of equal remuneration would obviously place new and growing burdens

on undertak1ngs which could clearly not eut men' s wages but would have to

raise womenrs.

For thnt renson, hends of undertnkings in B0lgium would desire the mensures

now being dobated by the Commission to be ndopted everywhere, particulur1y in

countries with wh1ch Bolgium hud ta compete economicnlly, sometimes on difficult

tarms.

Miss GIBSON (Australia) wns pleased to lenrn thnt the principle of

equa1 pey for equal wark wos being implemented, in whole or in pnrt, in e number

of countries. She gave e brief description of the position in her country for

the benefit of members of the Commission who hud not ettonded the ninth session,

when the Australian representative had outlined the position as it had then

stood.

The position had not materially altercd sinee. Equal pay waB nat yet

a tact, though the Commom-leo.ltb Govermnent did not oppose the principle. As

she hnd mcntioned et eerlier meetings, the distribution of power botwoon the

Australien Commonwealth and the constituent states created certain difficulties.

Although the Coromonwcolth haél. power to ratify International Labour Convention

No. 100, its implementation was a matter for the State outhorit1es, whother

nlone or in conjunction with the Commonwealth authoritiea. It wns accordingly

the prnctlce of the Commonwealth Governmont, befaro ratifying a Convention, to

oscertain whether it would bo, or was alrcady beiUG, implcmented in all the

constituent States.

The powers of the Commonwealth ParliQroont ta legislate directly on wages

were restricted ta its own employoes W1~ to ~haso of the Australian Territories.

In practice, howevor, the greot bulk of deeisions devolved on tho Arb1trol!

Tribunal. The Conciliotion and Arbitrntion Tribuno1 doalt with al1 mottera

concerning the prevention and settlement of industrial disputes e:rlending

beyond the limits of any one stete f



E/CN.6/SR..218
page Il

Wages other thon those of Commonwealth civil servants could be determineè

directly by the parliaments of the constituent States, but tribunals had been

established undor state laws to deal with the~.

The Australinn Commonwealth Government had hitherto èeclined to introduce

the principle of aqual pay for equal wor~ as it considered that it was for the

Conciliation and Pxbitration Tribunal to take the initiative in the matter.

The question of women' S ;'lages had come up for discussion in 1953, whon a number

of employers' organizations hud asked that they be reduced. It hud been decided

to mnintain women's wages nt 75 par cent of. thoso paid to men for work of equal

value. Thore wore, howover, certain cases in which wamen were paid the sa~o

rates as men.

It had Gmerged from the discussions held in connexion with thG ratification

of International Labour Convontion No. 100 tll1lt :r.:~.:_() of the constituent

Australian States wes prepnred to change its vievls. None of the tribunela

had accepted the principlo of oqual pay for equal work, although in certain

isolated cases iùentical rates of pay hud been fixed.

Current pay seales for wamen workers ranged between 65 per cont ~~d 90 per

cent of the ,.;ages paid to men, although the "margin for skill" whlch was added

to most adult basic wages hud also ta be taken into aecount. In some cases, aa

in the Conmionwealth Public ServicelJ, the 'innrgin for skiIl'' rate was' equo.l for

mon and wornen, in others it differed widely,

The attempt ta imploment the principle of equc.l puy in AUstralia had run

up against n two-folû difficulty. Politicnlly, the principle did not c~mend

i tsolf to the majoritYi and fram tho industrial point of view th6 trades

unions wore not very active in promoting it o At its last congress. held in

September 1955, the Austrnlian Council of Trado Unions (ACTU) had passed a

rosolution requosting~

"the Governmûnt of the Commonwealth of Aust,ralia to consult with
the respective State Govormaents with a view to the implementation
of the ACTU policy of oqual pay for the sexes;
where State Trades and Labour Councils have not already established
equal pay committees, that they be requestod to do so, and that the
facilitios of the AC1U and the Stnto Trades and Labour Councils be
provided to eo-ordinnto the work of such comndttees and to aasiet
thom ta carry out a vigorouD camp"::.3n to popula~'ise tho>1ual pay
objective;
and thnt ACTU call a national conference of trnde unions having
women members, on the question of equal pay, in Narch 1956."



E/CN.6/SR.21B
page 12

ACro hud not, however, yet approached the Ca:lIlTlonwealt}J, Govermnent with the

request contained in the first paregraph of that resolution and the trade union

claims being currently heard on the question of basic wagas included no reference

ta equal pey for man and women. although the conferonce to be held in March

might perhaps encourage them to tuke up the subject againG

It wes essential, through the women's orgc.nizations and the trado union

movements, ta stimulate public opinion in favour of the principle of equal P8Yr

as 1t was net llkely to be put into effect in Australia until :l.t had majority

support. However,:!t weB encouraging to find tha'li it had been accepted in the

United Klngdom, and to read in the Secretary-Gene~al'sreport that one govorn

ment' s action Could induee ethers to follow suit. The sununary, in the

Secretary-Genoralts report, of methods used in campaigns for government action

should prove most helpful. She thanked the Secretary-Genernl and the

International Labour Office for the excellent information contained in thelr

documents and announced thnt, in reply to the request from the International

Labour Offico, herGovernment would be submitting a report on equal remuneration

vory shortly.

Mrs. BENITEZ de SOCORRO {Venezuela} expressod her Government's intorost

in the documents on equal pay for equal work prepared for the Commission. Her

country hnd boen the first ta sign International Labour Convention No.IOO, and

took very seriously the resulting obligations both towards the other signatories,

and towards tho forces of labour that wero con"'.:.!'ibuting so poworfully to the

Qchievement of higher standards of living in Venezuela.

Her Government had done QIl in its pOl-Tor ta discharge its obligations in

respect of the principle of oqual pnyo ThD flourishing conditions prevailing

in Venezuela mado it possible for mon and wom0n, whothor nationale or foroigners,

to flnd highly paid work, [md sox wns never 0. handicap. Oallective agreements

concludod botwoen employers and warkcrs in the petroleum, motallurgicnl, building,

water supply and other industries could stand before the world as modela of

justice and equity ta both parties.

The vital significance of a convention lay not in its ratiflcatlon1 but in

the sum of the mensuras taken to give it practical affect .. Her country, whose

logislation on the s~bjact wus alrendy among the most p~ogressive, was n~~

prepn.ring aven more far-reaching reforma to pro!llo-~o the social security, moral



E/CN,,6/SR.218
page 13

health and woll-being of wo~en. A womon worker's training and rocreation cen~re

had boon set up to give 00urses in subjects required for professional qualification,

langû.ages and civ1.cs, and -~o provide information on techn:!.cal and industriel

quo8'~ions, lib:.-a.:des otc.; 0. hol1day cron.p had been es·tablishedfor rr.en nnd women

workers and thei= children at which they could enjoy all the advantages of n fine

beach at n cost that l.JilS weIl within their reach" Every use was being llléldo of

the cinema, broadcus~ing and tolevision to raise the cultural levels of workors

of both sexes.

Sho referred to the renmrks ~~de ut the previJ~S ma0ting by the

representa~·ivo of the International Alliance of Wo::nen on the subject of the

rosolution aél.opted by the IntG~natio:na.l Labou.r O~f'ice tirst Regional European

Con.ference 1 concerning tho retire:nent ago of i'IOmen~ It was regrettable that

the International Labm.:œ OrgnnizEttion 1 which had alwo.ys s'Good for the rights of

0.11 workers, should have adop~ed a provtsion which was very unfavourable to

older womon, and amounted to dis::::!.'imination agains-c them o She shared the nows

of the re:r;rosontatives of the Internat::'Œlal Alliance oZ W'oIr.en on the subject, and

considered ~ha"b the Connnission shmüd study thia question and express an opinion

on it.

Part·-timo Hork vlnS net clis~.::ussed in sui'".?icient detail in the Internatior..al

Labour Office Report (E/CNe 6/285 and Carrel) " The organization of part-time work

would be harmful to WO;i~·~)n if i ~ woro impos0d by emp10yers 0 In her own country,

the grcat do::nand fo~ labour nude it possib1efor workers to fix their own time

tables in accordance wlth their household cammitments o

Mrs" CORREA MORALES do A?.ARICIO (Argenti!h:) said thnt equnl1ty of

remunerntion prevailed !.n ho!' country in national ad.TJl1nistration and in edu.eation.

The p~inciple wns not observod by private omployers , but the Government was

worklng on plana vrhich i t hoped l;O·lÜd have oarly and far.. reoch:J.ng affects, ovon

if in. sorne raspects it hnd ta pro0·::h!tl atep by stepo

Enrl1er legislation had loft the do:xr opon fOl' mc.ny agreements betwecn

employers and Gmployoos unde.:, 'vhich difforontials betwoon men's and women's pay

had varied botwoen OcOJ. par, ':::C::lt and 21 :po:' cont 1 but 0.11 such agreements would

have to bG modifiod to mnke thom co:::Ji'v"!:"1l t 0 a new decreo p pramulgated on

17 February 1956, acco!'ding (;0 vT:l:l ~h o.li. VTo:non work"rs WllO unM.l that date had

been l'cccivlng up lia 90 pOl' ce!lt o:f.' the llay of ri man doing idont.ical work would



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 14

have to be pald the sarne rate as the man, and thoSG who had beon recolving less

faveurable terms would have their rates increasod by one half the dlfference

between their old salaries and those pnid to mono The docree also established

an lnsurance fund for family maintenance, te which employers were obliged to

contribute. The preparation of the docree lliqd bean largely the work of the

Nntional Directorate of Wemen, set up recently within tho Ministry of Labour.

Sho hoped to be able to glve the Commission news of lœgentina f s ratification

of International Labour Convention No ,,100 beforG the session ended~ She would

transmit all turther information on the mensures taken :Ln Argentina to the

representative of the International Labour O:rgani~3.tion.

The new measures introduced by her Govormnen-(j hnd noeded no publicity

campaign ta prepare public opinion, which, although it had been silent for many

Years, had remained conscious of the position; some groups, howcver, feared that

they might create unemployment emong womcm.

Two points had alroady emerged: first, the Mo.tornity Law, which had come

into force 25 years ago, was in urgent need of reform. The Govermnùnt had

tncklcd tha question with the collaboration of the National Directorate of Womon,

and hoped to lntroduce now legislation that would stand comparison with the

bost in force in other countries. Second, the now mensures meant that men and

women would now bo subject to the seme standards of efflciency, so that women

would have ta take full advantagc of the facilities provided by the national

vocational training schools nnd tho workers f university if they wished to maintain

their eCluality with men.

The Govermnent was in favour of women workors f rcprcsentatives taking pnrt

in ncgotiations with omploycrs, and it was hope1 that the conditions established

by the now logislation would encourage thom to tako n more activa part in trade

union lifo.

Tho dosirability of reforming legislation which imposed restrictions on

womon in thcir own interests (in Cf\se of dangcrous occupations and the like) wns

delmtnble, and the question required further study c Howover, women in Argentlnn

had no cause te fear unemployment, since they gcmernlly tended te takc work

nppropriate to their biological functions and physical capacity, and oncc they

had bean givon equality before the law that tendcncy would probably incrense.



E/CN~6/SR.218
page 15

fus. CHU (China) hnd rend the two reports, and heard the non-govcrnmentnl

organizations f stntements, on equnl pay for equal work, with great interest. Tho

principle was rocognized in her country's consUtution, which included special

provisions relnting to WOillen workers. Her cotmtryfs labeur legislation also

emphasized the point. In practice t conditions of oquul puy obtained in the most

important industries, the principle having long been applied in the sugar, tea~

pineapplo, textile and tobaaco industries, in which women predominated. The some

could be said of the civil service and the teaching profession. Progress hud

been made during the past year in Chinese industrinl lifo~ and women now hnd

botter opportun!ties of finding work, although emp10yers il'Gill tended to prefor

men, especial1y in the private sectora There were a1so very few womon in senior

positions in the govornment service and in trade and the professions. Shc

therefore ugreed with tho view oxp~ossed by other delegations that recognition

of the prinoip1e of equa1 pay was not enough. It was necessary to strivo ovory

where to secure more educo.tlonal and vocational training opportunities for women,

and the Secrotary-Goneralts ropo::,t (E/CN.6/276 and Oorr.l) on methods used in

compaigns to secura government action wou1d bo particular1y useful in Ohina.

The wamon ts organlzations in her country had oxerted influence on the

Govornment during the past yenr to ratify Intemational Labour Oonvention No.100,

as spoedily as possible, and she was happy to say that the executive bran~h of

the Governmdnt was alrondy undertnking the proparatory work for ratifioetion~ and

it wns expected to bo submitted to the Legislative Yuan for considoration and

upproval bofore long.

Tho OHt\IRMlill exprossod the OOnnni[lClionfs satisfaction at the announoeraonts

mrldo by tho dologations of i\.rgontina and Ohina concerning the ratifioation of

International L.'lbour Convention No.IOO by their respective Govornments.

Begum .ANWlill AHMED (Pakistan) oxpressed approciation of the clear way in

which the ropresentativo of the International Labour OrganisaGion had intxoduc0Q

the report on equal remuneration for mon and women for work of equal value

(E/CN.6/285 ana. Oorr.l) at the pre-"rious moetingo She recalled that I1t tho ninth

session Il resolution Gn the subject had beon introducod by the French ropresentative,

roquest1ng Mombor and non-Mombor Governmants a1ike to enact logislation on the

principlo of equal pay for equal w0rk~ The Paklstanl doleg~bion had thon pointed

out that in mnny countrios S\1ch logislaticn could no·~ bo affectivaly enf'orced, ilS



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 16

thore was no machinery far fixing wages or for job evaluation, and had submitted

an amendment to the French resolution ta take account of that state l')f affairs e "

Sorne members had felt that her suggestion would impair the impact 0f the French

proposaI, and others had regarded it as tantamm:nt to interference by governments

in questions that concerned employers and employoos alono o In order to expedite th.

Commissionls work she had withdrawn her amendment , expressing the hope that it

might provide a basis for discussion nt the preserr~ session.

The represontntivo of the International Lnbour OrG~isation hnd mado it quite

clear at the previous meeting thnt the principle or oqual pay for equal work

could not be considered'in abstracto, but only in clos0 connexion with the menllS

of applying it ~ At the lo.st session, the reprosontativa of S'woden hnd said that

countries with industrial traditions of long stnnd.lng found it more difficult to

implement the principloo It was therofore essontial that countries in the

initial stages of devolopment should tnko immodiato st0pS to ensure oquality of

remuneration for equal work before the tradition 01 inequo.lity had become tao

doep-rootoda The Pakistani delogation praposod eit.hor to introducc a separato

draft resolution on the point, or to have it ombodiod in some other proposaI

relating to item 5 of the agenda.

With regard to conditions in Pakistan, equ~.ity of pay wus practisod.

Conditions of employment, howover, wore governed laIg01y by deTIk~nd, and no

reliable statistics were available, so that :i,t uas probable thnt discrimination

~gainst women existed in certain fields of employment, Hor delegation w~s

therofore anxious that practical stops should bo taken ta erndicate the evil. As

the Byelorussian representative had stnted nt the previous meeting, oquality of

remunerntion would give woman that dignity in economj.c lite which th0 voto gave

'her in political life.

The CHAIRMAN, spoaking as representative of Sweden, polnted out that

what she had actually said ut the ninth session vlas tha·i.; in countries with a

high standard of industrialization thera gonerally oxistod a long-established

mnchinery for fixing wagos by negotiation betwoon the parties Oh the labour

market 0 In Swoden those parties had agreed to tako the principle of equal pay

as a basls for their collective bargaining. Undcr such circumstances it was not

necessary to enforce logislation :.;üatiTl..g to equal pny, except where the Stato

was the employer. For the Swodish civil servic0~ however, the principle of equo.l

pay was ulready emoodied in the constHl.~tiOIle



E/ONo6/SR.218
page 17

Begum M'WAR .ABl'1ED (Pakistan) said that, although she had not expressed

herself precisely, in substance that was what she had intended to ascribe to the

Swedish representutive.

Miss LUTZ (Inter~American Commission of Womon), speaking at the

invitation of theCHAIRMAN, said that the Inter-Ame~ican Commission was

particulurly interested in seouring equal conditions of work for vlOmen. She had

llstened with groat attention to the statement of the representative of the

International Lnb.:)Ul.' Organisation a·;; the pl'evious meeting, and faIt that that

agency deserveà full p::'aise for a:!.l the efforts it had made in that field o She

rega.rded it) hOw"ever, ns her duty to make a few rémarks(tb.:Jut International

Labour Convention NoolOO. As an old mcnbar of the women's IDùvem8nt, she hnd

always bean accustomed to use the words "equal pay for equal work", and she was

sOIilewhat concernod about the use in the Convention of the l'lords "equal pay for

work of equal value", because they i:c:::'.:;duced the idea of evaluation, which was

subjectivo and thus liable to lend ta bia~d interpretations. She hnd therefore

bean extremely interested to hear the rspresentative of the International labour

Organisation say that efforts were nm.... being made tù eliminû:te subjective

criteria in job assessment and to replace thcm by objective ones. She had also

boen gratified to note that most representatives hnd o~~tted any reference to

.evaluation in their statements, and had always used the expression "aqual po.y tor

equal workil ..

Sha hadalso listened 1,rith great interest to the explanations g1ven by the

Unitod States reprosentati ve, a1so at the pr(3"liou.s meeting; that in har country

rates were f1xed according to the job, sex playing no part in the procasB~ The

sarne practice prevuilod throughout most of Latin Amexica; in countries like

Bruzil, whoro entry into the civil service was carefully rogulatad by a

compatitive system, women had equal oppartunities with men onà were remuneratod

on the shlne scales"

She ugreed with the Frenëh and BeJ.gian rOj.)resentati V9S that i t was

undeslrablo to accept a lower retiring age for "l'omen than fo-: mlm" because auah

a favour was like.1..y ta have unwelcome repercussions in the ex~I~8ion of women

from the highor pOS"liS o She hoped that lb would be p0881::;10 ta take her remarks

lnto account, as her Commission intendo~ to pursue its ~am,aign for the

ratification of I:!ltcrnational Labour CC:-:7ention No.lGO in the Americas. Although



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 18

there wes no discrimination against w0men in the civil services of most Iatin

American countries, s()mething had still to be done in eradicating discrimination

fram agriculture, because it was difficult to frame suitable legislation in that

field or to enforce Ho The general trend towards equality in the Amèricas waa,

howcver, very encouraging, women being privileged only in respect of matornity

benefits o Apart from that solo instance of discrimination in favour of women,

thore was go6d ground to hope that the idoalof equal pay for equal work would

fnirly soon become universal reality.

The CHA:mMAN thanked the roprasontativa of the Intor-American

Commission of Women for her interosting statoment.

Mrs" LEFAUCHEUX (France) did not wish to repco.t what she hnd o.lready

said on the subject of equal remuneration; but she would point out how

disquieting it was for v.1J~kors in countrios whore the rates pnid to mon and

w9ffien were equal to see that in othor countries·they waro still unaqual. Leaving

aside the liberalization of trade, it could be said that the flow of trade would

be obstructed so long as no steps werc to.ken t 0 aven out the position throughaut

the world. Cleerly certc.in ccuntries ought not to be subjectod to an

indoterminate aconomic handica~ becausa they ~ad put inta practice a principle

which hnd beon unanimously accepted.

Advnnces ho.d undoubtedly bcen made in the application of the principle, and

the Commission had henrd very encouraging statements in that connexion. fram the

representatives of the United Kingdam. and the United States of America. She wos

also grati~ied ta lenrn that International L~bour Convention No.lOO had been

ratificd, or waS about ta be ratifiod, by more governmonts. Nevertheless, sho

agreod with the Byeloru.ssion representativo that the Convontion was not wholly

sntisfactcry boco.usc, as the Bolgtan representntivo had pointed out, it wes not

logelly binding on signat0ry Statos o

AnSworing pr0vio~s speakers, sl~ saiu that in ho~ opinion the logislaturo

oven of a country of free ontorprisc c'.)uld oblige privato omployors to rospect

the principlo of cquality of remunü~ation~

She would liko to soo the CommissJ.on express i ts view clearly on anothor

important mat"ber: the age of rGti::,oment c Sho cited the speech sho had made et

the Commissionts m00ting on 23 rmrch 1955, at the ninth session, when it had boan

dobating the subjoct, o.nd the rcrpJ.:r given to her thon by the representetiva of



E/CN..6/SR.218
page 19

the International Labour Organisation. Tho Commission had stated in its report

to the Economie and Soc1al CouneiJ. on Its ninth session (1) that: "Tho consonsus

of ,opinion was that the campuls..)ry retirement age should be the S8ll1e for men and

womon workers: and that the International Labour Organisation should pay

particclar attention to this quesUon" ", She asked whether that oxplicit opinion

given by the CoIllIllission had been consiè.ered, and whothor 1t had affoctod o.ny

subsequent discuEsiona at the ninth session. Sho hud not found' any precise

information in the documents which ahe had consulted in preparation for item 5

of the agenda, and she therefore thoug:i~ that the Commission ollght to rostato its

position.

The problem vms not a secondary ona: but one of the utmost importance for

women's profosSional careors. Gencrally spoaking, women embarkod upon the1r

chosan careor less wall qualified professU;nally than men; and their

professional acti vities wora morc ofton broken off t"mn men t s. That raised the

problem of absenteeisrll among women
Î

mentioned by the Yugoslav represontative.

If, in addition to those handicaps, VTOIDen were o'~liged to retire oarlier than men,

they could nev~r hopo to acquire the sarne professional standing, ainee 1t waa as

a rulo in the last few years of a career that success came to crown a wholo

11fet1me of effort. Woman wO-.lld, of course, have boen able to earn a livelihood,

and often to maintain their families by their work) but female employment should

not be regarded exclusively from the utilita!'ian point 0: \""iow. If women woro to

take thoir proper place in the economic 1 social and political life of thoir

countr1es, they must have an opportunity of maki.ng thoir mark in their

professions 0

&ving thn~ demonstrated the impo::-tance of the retiring age, sho considered

that tho Cornniss1on should study the ~~tter closely~ Some considerod that the

possibility of oarl1er retirement was an advo.U'tage to wom<m. Even if that ware

the cnse', it '.J'ould be as well to remem:Jor tho.t all priviloges had to bo paid

for, somet1!'1es very doarly. When the labour mar'kat was such that staff had to

b..a laid off it Wo.s only natural thet, "t.hose who were entitled to retire ahould bo

tho tirst to go, in which case wamen would be laid off; howevor much they

might wish to romain at l.lork. Honce shc was against the system of the earlier

retirement age, even vlhore it wns put forward as an adv3Iltage which doponded

ent1rely ou the ~roo choice o~ the woman worker c

tl) Soa E/2727, para.10g.



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 20

Tho CHAIRMAN proposed that the representativa of the Internnt1f'.Ilal

L.'lbour Organisation should reply ta the Fren~h represontative on that point when

the Commission came ta diseuss economic opportunities for women (item 7 of the

agenda) •

Mrs. I.EFAUCHEUX (Frnncc) agreed.

Mrs. NOCE (World Federation of Trndo Unions), speaking nt the

invitation of the CHAIRMAN, snid that the principle of e~ual pay for equal work

wns in the interest of all countries, since its application would raise the

purohasing powor of millions of families, o.nd the consequont increaBe in

eonsumption would bo condueivo to economic expansion. Moreover, that prlnclple

was bnsed on justice, nnd was an essontial prerequisite for the achiovemcnt ot
women' s demands in other spheros of social and political life. Women ho.d ta

w<?rk for the sarne rensons as mon, their work was of equal productive value, and

modern econom1e systems could not function without them.

Though sorne progress had recently been mnde in applying the prinoiple 01'

equal pay f-..Dr equal work, much rcmained ta be donc, sincc the vast majority

of women workers were paid at rates at least 10 to 50 par cont below those

prevailing for men, and since only ten countries had so far ratified.lnternntional

Labour Convention No.lOO. In an evor increasing number of countries, however,

both men and women workers and their trade unions were taking steps ta put an

end ta thnt nnomnlous state of nffnirs, nnd new wage agreements were coming to

include clauses which reduccd or eliminated differentinl rates as betweon Illon

and womon. At the srune timo, an endeavour t-TIlS being mnde ta socure recognition

of the princ1ple of e~unl pay for equnl work through legislation.

The World Foderation of Trade Unions (WFTU) was taking an nctiva part in

that cnmpnign, nnd was organizing a world conference ot womon workers. Tho two

main questions on the agonda of that conference, in which all trnde unions wero
"being invited to participnte, would bu o~unl pay for oqual work, and the incrensGd

participation of womon in the activities and leadership of trlldes uniO~B. The

two questions wero clenrly closely relatod, sinco increasod participation of

womon in trade union nctivitios was bound to give added impetus ta the unions'

crunpnign for the recognition of tho principle of equal pay for equal work. The

news that the conference was ta be canv;.med had been very well reoeived, and

prepnratory work was now in progress in more than 35 countries. Tho' préparations



EleN. 6/SR. 218
page 21

. vere olo!3ely connocted with the campaign for equal romuneration, and teck lnto

account the special demands voiced by women workors in aIl the countries concerned.

But far fram being the culIninating point in the strugg1a~ theconferenco would

bo a further manne of promot:i.ng the campaign for the rights of working wornen •

.A numbt3r of orroneous ideas had to be dispelled in the strugglo for equal

re~unoration. AB a reprosentative of WFrU had alroady stated bafore the

~omm1sBion, the problom did not affoct womon aloner- becauae differontial rates

of pay for women ofton moant that the wago rates for mon remainod at an unduly

low lovel.· Such WllS the sitUation :in Italy whore the low wages of male textilo

workars wero cortc1nlY due to the fact that women oocO'.mted for 80 par cont of

.all workers in the Industry, whorea.s the proportion'wes considerably 100er in

the United Statos, of Amoricc., France and the United Kingdom.

Somo,countries, although adm1tti~ the prlnciple of equal pay for equal

work, l1mitod 1ts application by peying for work,done exclusively or in large

part bywomen et only 80 par cent of the mania rate. WFrU strongly objected

to :that practice, becnuse the va1ua of labour did not depend on whether it wes

man'.8 or woman' s, and because in countless cases the value of wamen' s work was

infin1tely greater than that of men's work. More over , in many industries women

wOre now doing work which had until recontly been the exclusive province of man.

In such cases, the paymont of differential rates simply reflocted the omployer's

groed, end his dosire to bonofit fram the rompetition botween male and fomnle

labour. Such a practice could only land ta further oxplaitntion of womon

wark0rs.

Employors aft0utried ta justify difforontial rates on the ground that

femalo labour was not in every respect the oqual of male labour. The slightest

chango in raw materials or 'machinory wes seized upon as justification for puying

lowor wagos to women. It wns thorofore ossontial to bo perfoctly clear about th~

meaning of "oqunl pey for work of equal value", and WFl'U askod that equel1ty of

:pay should bo basad not only on equal work and work of oqual valuo, but also ...

and c~iofly - on oquality of qualifications and cntogory. It was nooessnry to

seeuro rocognitlon for that principle, which was ominently just, irrespect!va

(;t dU't'croncos in the kind of work dono.

The argument that women t s "output" waB inforior ta that of men was not

valide The quality of womcnTs work was ofton suporior to that of monts, and

as fur o.s quantity wes concerned it WB sufficient to fix an equal minimum



ElcN .6/SR.21S'
page 22

wage for bath sexes, whon the problem of quanti ty would disappear. Men and.

women would then bo paid Ilccording to the quantity of their output but on an

equal foot ing.

Finally, it had often beon suggested that the campaign for equal rcmunorat10n

was hampered by women's excossivo absonteoism, Ilnd that women's comparative lack

of intcrost in trade unionism mndo it difficult to carry on the struggle. WFrtJ

agreed that it WIlS essent1al ta arouso the interost of womon in the unions, which

was why it had includod the questinn in the agenda of the coming world oonferoncc.

But it was untrue to say tbat womon were not intorostod in the pr1nciple of equlll

pay for equal work. The difficulty was that, in countri.es suf.:teriJJ.&.j.'rom··-ehronic

unemployment, whero standards of living wore low, women were forced t 0 accept

almost any kind of work in order to support thcir familios. It was hoped that

the world conference ~ould shed considorable light on that problem.

WFTU entiroly agroed with the reprosentati ve of the International labour

Organisation -that 'legis.la:t1ve measurcs 1'ixing an oqual minimum wage for ail

workers would be extremely h~ul in the cumpaign for equa~ remuneration.

Thore were many ..rays of attacking the problem, but the central struggle was that

carried on by the trade unions. It was essential that aIl workers should unite

if their claims wore to bear fruit. Once positive results had been aohieved,

such as agreoments in certain sectors of industry, it would be possible to extend

the process..through._lcg1slative action.

WFTU did not agree with those who minimized the importance of legislation.

On the contrary, it was highly desirablo that the principle 01' equal pay for

equal work should be rocognized in the lnws and constitutions of 0.11 c0U11tries.

The Commission w0uld be doing n uscful servico in the common cause if it

prcpared a draft standard law on cqunl remuneration, which might serve as a modal

for countries, particulnrly those receiving technicnl assistance.

In a recent interview with the Dlr0ctor-General ef the Intornational Labo~

Office, WFTU had suggestod that trade unions throughout the world should organize

a campaign for tho'ratification of International Labour Convention No.lOO,

The resolution recommending the genernl application of that Convention, which

had been odopted in the Textiles Conunittee of the International laboUr

Org~ization, wns about to be transmitt0d to all States Members of that agency.



E/CN.6/SR.218
page 23

A tirst result of tbat resal"..:+;ion in Italy, her ot->'11 COtL'1try, was that the

Chamber of Deputies would now disc"J.ss the ratifi!~ation of the Convention, and

all trade union members of the Italian Pa:::lioment wO'.lld seek a debate on the

draft billon eq,ual pay for eq,t:.al work which sho had herself introducod. WF1'U

falt that it would be appropriate for the Commission at the present time to

e.ddrass a request to aIl govern.':1.ents to raJ;jify the Convention, as the representat1va

ot the International rederation of Christian Trndo Unions hud already suggested.

In the new phase which was opening in the struggle, it might also be desirable tor

the Commission to carry out a study~ jointly with the International Labour Office,

on existing differential rates of pay for eq,ual work and on the differentiation

between the jobs offored to men and women, whieh led to d1seriminatory pract1ces.

Furthermore, sinee the International Labour Conference would~ at its forthooming

session, be examining a series of reports on the raGification of the ponvent1on

Na.100, the Commission might malee a joint st'l:dy wif:;h the Internntional labour

Organizatlon of the extent ta w~ich the Convention 1'18S actually being appl1ed in

the world.

Finally, the Commission might also examine the possibilHy of publ1shing a

pamphlet on equal reFnneration, on the seme linos as that published on political

rlghts. It had alrcady played a large part in seeuri~s the general reoognition

of that important principle, and i t was ta be hoped that i t w::>uld pursue i ta

efforts in that direction. Tho road would be finally opened to success only if

nll discriminatory practices woro brought tefore the p1l01ic oye.

Further disrussion ~f itom 5 o~ the age~~~ was 4~te~red ~til the next

meoting.




